

Climate and environment emergency executive panel

Date: Tuesday, 12 December 2023

Time: 16:00

Venue: Council chamber, City Hall, St Peters Street, Norwich, NR2 1NH

Committee members:

Councillors: For further information please

Hampton (chair) contact:
Champion

Fox Committee officer: Jackie Rodger

Lubbock t: (01603) 989547

Padda e: jackierodger@norwich.gov.uk

(2 vacancies) Democratic services

City Hall Norwich NR2 1NH

www.norwich.gov.uk

Information for members of the public

Members of the public and the media have the right to attend meetings of full council, the cabinet and committees except where confidential information or exempt information is likely to be disclosed, and the meeting is therefore held in private.

For information about attending or speaking at meetings, please contact the committee officer above or refer to the council's website



If you would like this agenda in an alternative format, such as a larger or smaller font, audio or Braille, or in a different language, please contact the committee officer above.

Agenda

		Page nos
1	Apologies	
	To receive apologies for absence	
2	Declarations of interest	
	(Please note that it is the responsibility of individual members to declare an interest prior to the item if they arrive late for the meeting)	
3	Minutes	3 - 8
	To approve the accuracy of the meeting held on 10 October 2023	
4	Update on Citywide Climate Action	9 - 14
	Purpose - To update CEEEP on progress towards developing a Climate Action Strategy for Norwich, as well as progress on specific actions already underway that will fall under the strategy.	
5	Corporate Plan - consultation with members on the climate and environment aspects of the plan	
	This item is an opportunity to consult with members of the panel, as part of the wider consultation process, on the climate and environment aspects of the new Corporate Plan.	
С	Date of publication: Tuesday, 05 December 2023	



Item 3

MINUTES

Climate and Environment Emergency Executive Panel

16:00 to 18:35 10 October 2023

Present: Councillors Hampton (chair), Stutely (vice chair), Champion, Fox,

Lubbock, Oliver, and Stutely

Apologies: Councillor Padda

1. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Fox declared an other interest as a student at the University of East Anglia during item 3 (below).

2. Minutes

RESOLVED to approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2023.

3. Norwich Climate Commission Progress Report and Future Plans – Presentation

(Asher Minns, Co-Chair of the Norwich Climate Commission and Executive Director, Tyndall Centre for Climate Change Research, University of East Anglia, attended the meeting for this item.)

Asher Minns introduced the presentation that updated the panel on the progress of the Norwich Climate Commission over the last 18 months and its future plans. The Climate Commission had been announced in November 2021, during the Glasgow COP26. The purpose of the commission was as a friend to help the city council on its missions around climate and environment sustainability and to support citizens on their pathway to net zero. The Tyndall Centre was established 23 years ago as part of a partnership with four other universities in the UK. The Climate Commission gave the Tyndall Centre an opportunity to put its theory into practice. The Norwich Climate Commission was part of the Place Based Climate Action Network across the UK.

In conclusion, Asher Minns said that government policy had focused on carbon reduction but there was a need for resilience and adaptation to climate change. Sea levels were expected to rise for the next millennia. The Tyndall Centre had been working on the analysis of the fourth UK Climate Change Risk Assessment, that was quantitative and better informed that previous assessments. He hoped that there would be funding to provide climate change risk assessment for Norfolk so that the appropriate responses could be made.

(The <u>presentation</u> is available on the council's website with the agenda papers for this meeting.)

During discussion, Asher Minns and the Environmental Strategy Manager answered members' questions on issues arising from the presentation.

The panel discussed the role of Whitlingham Broad as the city's equivalent of the London Flood Barrier. Asher Minns advised against complacency in that the broad provided an ecosystem that was slow draining and could absorb river water but needed to be enhanced to mitigate against rising sea levels and storms. In policy terms there was thinking about the risk and where that threshold of protection should be for the whole of the county. The Environmental Strategy Manager advised members that all development on flood plains had a statutory obligation to mitigate loss of the flood plain. East Norwich would have comprehensive and robust measures in place to mitigate flood risk that were subject to approval by the Environment Agency.

During further discussion on the flood risk to Norfolk from rising sea levels and development. Asher Minns said that developers and planners would need to respond to flood risk based on information that was held. In Havanna ground floor businesses were adapted to accommodate floods and be back in business within 24 hours. There was evidence there would be breaches of sea walls in Norfolk, and drainage of salt water and flooding into the Broads and river network. The Environmental Strategy Manager said that regarding the East Norwich development, there were good predictions of sea level rise. There were active discussions at county level and as part of the work of the Norfolk Climate Partnership regarding flood risk mapping to 2100 for the whole of Norfolk. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) required flood mitigation for the life of any building (50 years) and the risk was robustly protected by existing legislation.

During discussion on the "Twenty is Plenty" campaign, members considered that there needed to be better information available to drivers on the benefits of speed reduction and to extend zones across the city. Asher Minns commented on the importance of policies that were bottom-up and that considered that schools and particularly affected communities should be targeted. The reduction of speeds from 30mph to 20mph resulted in a 20 per cent decrease in particulates and a reduction in noise pollution. The barrier to an overall reduction in the city was also larger roads where there were heavy goods vehicles and higher speeds were permitted. It was considered that there was potential for the Norwich Climate Commission to request a student desk top study on the costs and impact of "Twenty is Plenty" and checking with the community what could be done to promote active travel.

Members commented on the Norwich Standard for housing to ensure that new developments were carbon zero and above the culminative standards and the minimum standard for sustainability and energy efficiency. Asher Minns said that the Cornwall Design Guidance for sustainable development passed the cost onto the developer. Members noted that local businesses were being approached regarding the retrofitting scheme to increase energy efficiency in council housing across the city.

General discussion ensured on air pollution, the predictions on increased mortality and health impacts, and the reduction of particulates. Asher Minns confirmed that

predictions were that the mortality rate from heat would be less than 20 by the year 2050. He advised members that particulates from exhaust fumes and brake dust from motorised vehicles had affected the whole planet, with particulates being found in the Antarctic. Health and wellbeing should be at the centre of environmental policies. Members noted that there had been a reduction in emissions in the UK since there had been less reliance on burning of fossil fuels and the closure of the coal mines. Local policies, including the city council's retrofitting programme and the implementation of energy saving measures, such as LED light bulbs, had made a difference. Norwich at times has higher pollution than London due to the location.

In reply to a question asking what was one of the most important things that could be done to address the climate and environment emergency, Asher Minns said that he would put environment right and centre of all policies and decisions; everything such as equality, income and sense of place fell off sustainability. He considered that everything should be looked at through an environmental lens.

Members commented on the work of the scrutiny committee on Air Pollution from Wood Burning (scrutiny committee 15 July 2021 and 9 September 2021), and noted that the council should consider introducing a smoke control area to prevent the use of wood burners, particularly as in most cases it was considered a life-style choice.

The panel also discussed food security in relation to climate and environment change and noted that agriculture was a large emitter of carbon emissions. Asher Minns commented that he had colleagues who were experts working on this on the changing patterns of weather and supply chains, and working to encourage net zero agriculture and food production. Agriculture was one of the largest emitters in the county. The soil in the Fenns and much of the county was peat and released carbon when dry. Ideally it should be returned to wetlands to absorb carbon, some of the crops grown in the region such as sugar beet, were not the best use of prime agricultural land if it were to be resilient to climate and environment change, and food security. Members considered urban agriculture and the capacity of allotments to provide high yields. A member suggested that urban spaces should be reimagined as space currently taken up by roads could be used for urban agriculture. Asher Minns said that he did not consider that Norwich was more sensitive to food security than other areas. There was a lot that could be done to reduce food packaging and discussions needed to be held with companies with outlets in the area, which would reduce waste and the cost to the council to remove it. The city council could be an exemplar for surrounding district authorities.

Discussion ensued on the map showing the emissions on a ward-by-ward basis. Asher Minns explained that the wards showing as "blue" were those with the highest levels of deprivation and that Eaton's high emissions were related to the wealth of the residents. In reply to a member's question about reducing carbon emissions in Eaton, the Environmental Strategy Manager said that the Norfolk Climate Change Partnership had been awarded government funding study of the socio-economic barriers to retrofitting households across the county. It was widely recognised that the technology was available to reach targets. Each local authority had chosen a ward/division to provide further insight into the socio-economic barriers to retrofitting. The city council had selected Eaton and engagement would commence in the next couple of months.

RESOLVED to

- (1) thank Asher Minns for the presentation;
- (2) to invite Asher Minns back to a future meeting to present the findings of the fourth UK Climate Change Risk Assessment to the panel.

4. Global and Local Impacts of Climate and Biodiversity Change

The Environmental Strategy Manager gave the presentation and explained that it underpinned the formation of the council's forthcoming Environmental Emergency Response Programme (EERP), and set out its structure. He confirmed that the presentation reflected the council's agreed position on the various strategies. Since the adoption of the council's Environmental Strategy, the science and solutions had moved on so much in recent years, it provided a great foundation to work on, but a more detailed action plan was needed, taking into consideration the outcome of the carbon audit on the council's emissions. The EERP provided a comprehensive document which set out specific actions and milestones for delivering climate action strategies and plans for the council and city.

(The <u>presentation</u> is available on the council's website with the agenda papers for this meeting.)

During discussion, the Environmental Strategy Manager said that the first workstreams were to reduce carbon emissions work and confirmed that the adaptation and resilience strategy was informed by this work and would be included in the EERP. He assured members that work was going on around this as was usual with strategies in the two to three years before publication. There had been good work done on reducing emissions but not enough globally on adaptation. As an organisation the council would need to change the way it did things. The first principles should be how to reduce emissions and how the council could adapt. The second principle was around localism to see what the council could do within its influence to optimise what it could do in the city. On the matter of cost, it would take more work. The council has benefited from central government funding and whilst the numbers were low the experience had been useful to understand those costs.

A member commented on the difficulty that residents had accessing the EON funding for retrofitting and his concern that the standard of insulation was not sufficient and would need redoing in a few years' time. The Environmental Strategy Manager said that it would be unfair to use council tax funding for retrofitting privately owned homes. There was a lack of response from central government to support these schemes. The council could however signpost people to these grant schemes. The funding was often constrained by needing to be spent within a certain timeframe. One of the issues that the council noted that was there was a poor response to a targeted approach by residents because they could not believe that the scheme was free or left it too late to apply. Another barrier to uptake was that a whole house retrofit was required.

In reply to a question about ensuring that the council did not support the use of fossil fuels through its investments, the Environmental Strategy Manager said that under the council's Tier 3 emissions, the council's Procurement Strategy required those buying or selling services to the council or its capital investments share the council's values.

The Environmental Strategy Manager said that financing was a major barrier to retrofitting properties. The council had remained in touch with the Green Finance Institute, and he understood that there were mortgage providers considering offering a product to borrow against the house for retrofitting, which would be repaid when the house was sold. He said that he hoped that in a free-market economy that lenders would be prepared to provide funding for retrofitting. The post of Citywide Climate Change Action Plan coordinator was being appointed to ensure good practice and facilitate access to schemes.

In reply to a member's suggestion that those areas with low carbon emissions should be rewarded, the Environmental Strategy Manager said that in most cases this was due to deprivation. The council could target residents who could benefit from the grant system. The council had gained experience of retrofitting which could be applied more widely. A member commented that residents of private rented properties were excluded from schemes for owner occupiers or residents of social housing. Another member commented that private landlords who retrofitted their properties could benefit by its improvement. Members also noted that retrofitting was currently being considered by a scrutiny committee task and finish group.

RESOLVED to:

- (1) thank the Environmental Strategy Manager for the presentation;
- (2) note that members will be consulted on the Environmental Strategy Response Programme and the General Operations Climate Action Strategy and Plan at the next meeting.

CHAIR

Page	8	of	14
------	---	----	----



Item 4

Committee Name: Climate and Environment Emergency Executive Panel

Committee Date: 12/12/2023

Report Title: Update on city-wide climate action.

Portfolio: Councillor Hampton, Cabinet member for climate change and

digital inclusion

Report from: Head of Strategy, Engagement and Culture

Wards: All Wards

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

Purpose

To update CEEEP on progress towards developing a Climate Action Strategy for Norwich, as well as progress on specific actions already underway that will fall under the strategy.

Recommendation

To review and comment on the updates provided.

Policy Framework

The Council's 2022-2026 Corporate Plan outlines 5 cross-cutting aims. Aim 2 specifies that:

Norwich is a sustainable and healthy city.

Within Aim 2, the Corporate Plan establishes the following priorities:

• Reduce carbon emissions, protect the environment and adapt to climate change, both in the council's own operations and more widely.

Report Details

- 1. Over the last 12 months, the council has been working to develop a Climate Action Strategy and Plan for Norwich (hereafter 'the Strategy'). This Strategy focuses on reducing Norwich's emissions as a whole, setting out steps to achieve the city's 2045 net-zero target. An operational carbon reduction programme for the Council's emissions will follow. The generic themes of the Strategy have been consulted on with SLT and members during October 2023, with feedback and comments now being incorporated into work to draft the strategy. Work is now underway to develop a final draft of the strategy, which will be brought to CEEEP at the earliest possible date.
- 2. The council has formally engaged Norwich Climate Commission to assist in the development of the strategy to ensure it is sufficient to meet its aims.
- 3. The suggested key priority areas of the strategy are as follows; these are outlined so that feedback regarding scope and sufficiency can contribute to the evolution of the strategy.
 - 3.1. The council as leader and coordinator of climate action and nature recovery
 - 3.2. The council as an enabler of climate action i.e. enabling retrofit, low-carbon transport, etc.
 - 3.3. The council leading nature recovery in the city
 - 3.4. The council enabling the city to effectively adapt to the impacts of climate change.
 - 3.5. The council enabling community wealth building, promotion of equality and maximisation social value generation, in the delivery of these policies.
 - 3.6. The council developing an effective performance review framework for citywide environmental action.
- 4. The Council will be holding a public consultation event at the Norwich Science Festival on 23 and 24 February. This early consultation will seek feedback from the public on the sufficiency of scope of the Strategy and further ideas ahead of arriving at a final draft. There will then be a full public consultation on a highly developed draft of the Strategy later in 2024.
- 5. A number of potential actions that will be set out in the Strategy are already underway. The following paragraphs give insight and an update on these actions.
- 6. Heat Network Development during 2022 and 2023 the council engaged in a pilot project with the Department of Energy Security and Net Zero (DESNZ) to determine the feasibility of creating formal Heat Network Zones in Norwich; 27 other UK cities were involved in the pilot. The council acted as the stakeholder coordinator to facilitate data flows to DESNZ to investigate the density of heat consumption across the city.

The pilot projects have resulted in provisions being made in the Energy Act 2023 to promote the implementation of formal Heat Network Zones in UK cities. Heat Network Zones will be recognised as part of a new planning regime, requiring new development and certain existing buildings to connect to low carbon heat networks. The obligations placed upon local authorities are currently uncertain, with a consultation containing further information expected early-to-mid 2024. The aim of the regulations is to increase the amount of heat provided by heat networks in the UK from around 3% currently, to 20% by 2050.

The Council will continue to enable the development of heat networks in the city, as an action of the Strategy

7. Local Area Energy Plan (LAEP) – the Council is working with UK Power Networks (UKPN), Norfolk County Council and Norfolk Climate Change Partnership, as part of a county wide Local Area Planning Exercise. The aim of the LAEP is to understand future energy consumption scenarios relating to decarbonisation, so that local electricity networks can be strengthened in line with anticipated future demand.

UKPN have put in place a new team to engage with local authorities regarding their decarbonisation programmes and have developed an interactive model to enable local authorities to model their own scenarios. Officers of the council and the council's consultants have started to use the model in order to develop a comprehensive brief for a LAEP, including for the urban area of the city (which does extend into neighboring local authorities), the East Norwich Strategic Redevelopment Area and the A11 growth corridor.

A collaborative exercise including strategic planners at Norfolk County Council is developing a brief and funding bid for the LAEP, which is expected to commence during 2024.

- 8. **East Norwich Energy SPD** A draft energy section of the East Norwich Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been drafted by council officers in collaboration with strategic planners at Norfolk County Council, in line with Greater Norwich Local Plan policy. The new draft builds on concepts developed as part of a report produced by the council's consultant Synfo Ltd, which investigated sustainable energy options for East Norwich. This section of the SPD sets out policies, principles and guidance for delivering sustainable energy at the East Norwich Strategic Development Area.
- 9. Fast Followers Norfolk Net Zero Communities The Norfolk Climate Change Partnership has been awarded Innovate UK "Fast Followers" funding to undertake a two-year Norfolk Net Zero Communities project. Focusing predominantly on retrofit and sustainable transport, the project seeks to identify the "non-technical" barriers hindering the adoption of sustainable behaviours and to begin thinking about how we might co-create solutions to overcome these. Emphasising a place-

based, community-tailored approach, the project aims to listen to and connect communities to gain and share insights and experiences. While not directly providing funding, the initiative aims to link individuals with existing financial resources and guide them through the process of making tangible changes, promoting visible progress in communities.

Eaton has been chosen as our defined community for the project, predominantly due to its position as Norwich's most affluent ward. We feel that the potential learning from Eaton is greatest as we can begin to understand why, even if people *can* afford to change (i.e. retrofit their house), they still might be reluctant to. Eaton also has a unique housing stock, covering a range of archetypes, with learning again transferable across the city as a result. The outcomes of the project will help further inform the Council's theory of change model as we seek to encourage behaviour change across the city. Initial engagement work with residents' associations is due to being shortly.

- 10. Climate Commission's Our Power "Community Energy Champions" The Norwich Climate Commission, under the guise of their "Our Power" sub-group, continue to plan for a "Community Energy Champion" project. This project seeks to provide reliable advice to underserved communities in Norwich concerning retrofit and energy efficiency. With a strong emphasis on community engagement, the project aims to build trust within certain communities to ensure that the advice given has a meaningful impact. Moreover, the aim is to encourage communities to unite for collective action, such as group-buying materials or spreading knowledge and best practice. The Commission are currently looking to recruit a Project Manager to oversee the project, and are seeking further funding to upscale.
- 11. **Groundwork Green Doctors** The Council has been approached by Groundwork East, who plan to launch their "Green Doctors" programme in Norwich, pending agreed (external) funding. The Green Doctors programme offers free and impartial advice to support individuals address issues such as difficulties in paying energy bills, managing fuel debt, concerns about staying warm, and health-related problems associated with living conditions. While this programme will be run entirely by Groundwork, the Council will play a key role in signposting vulnerable individuals and ensuring that the work is integrated with existing services. More information about Green Doctors can be found here: https://www.groundwork.org.uk/greendoctor/
- 12. **Sustainable Food Norwich** The Council is supporting the new Sustainable Food Norwich (SFN) partnership, which has recently been awarded membership of Sustainable Food Places, a national network of over 90 local partnerships aimed at making local, healthy and sustainable food available to all. SFN has recently been formed, and is currently developing a strategy that aligns to Sustainable Food Places 6 themes (Food Governance & Strategy; Good Food Movement; Healthy Food for All; Sustainable Food Economy; Catering &

Procurement; Food for the Planet). SFN held a well-attended event at Blackfriars Hall on 21 November with key local stakeholders to begin understanding what is already happening within the city and how existing initiatives and groups can be integrated effectively (i.e. paragraph 11). More information can be found at: www.sustainablefoodnorwich.org.uk.

13. **Solar Together and Switch and Save** – The Council continues to run the effective Solar Together and Switch and Save collective auction schemes. While the numbers are not yet available, the 2023 Solar Together action has had high levels of interest with a significant number of registrations that will hopefully translate into installations. The Switch and Save scheme has been less consistent due to the current state of energy market, with auctions not always being held due to the inability to secure a better price. However, the June 2023 auction did see residents offered a fixed price tariff below the (then current) price cap. The next auction takes place 9th January, with sign-up closing on the 8th. All tariffs secured under Switch and Save are 100% renewable.

Implications and Next Steps

14. Comments and input from CEEEP will be taken into account and fed into the continued development of the strategy, and the ideas and actions that underpin it. We will continue to consult with the Norwich Climate Commission to gain their expert input on certain issues. Public consultation will begin at the Norwich Science Festival, where we will seek feedback from the public on the sufficiency of scope of the Strategy and further ideas ahead of arriving at a final draft. There will then be a full public consultation on a highly developed draft of the Strategy later in 2024.

Property and Economic Development Implications

15. There are no direct property/economic development implications of this report.

Financial and Resources

16. There are no direct financial/resource implications of this report.

Legal

17. There are no direct legal implications of this report.

Statutory Considerations

Consideration	Details of any implications and proposed	
	measures to address:	
Equality and Diversity	NA	
Health, Social and Economic	NA	
Impact		
Crime and Disorder	NA	
Children and Adults Safeguarding	NA	
Environmental Impact	The measures and recommendations outlined in	
	this report will contribute to a substantial	
	reduction in the overall carbon footprint of	
	Norwich, either directly or through enabling	
	further action.	

Risk Management

Risk	Consequence	Controls Required
NA	NA	NA

Other Options Considered: NA

Reasons for the decision/recommendation: NA

Background papers: NA

Appendices:

Contact Officer: Environmental Strategy Officer

Name: Ben Spratling

Email address: benspratling@norwich.gov.uk